PUBLIC PROTECTION
COMMITTEE
Monday, June 10, 2013
11:00 AM
651 Pine Street, Room 101, Martinez CA 94553

Supervisor John Gioia, Chair
Supervisor Federal D. Glover, Vice Chair

Agenda Items:

Items may be taken out of order based on the business of the day
and preference of the Committee

1. Introductions/Call to Order

2. Public comment on any item under the jurisdiction of the Committee and not on this agenda
(speakers may be limited to three minutes).

3. CONSIDER reviewing the draft Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for data collection and program
evaluation services related to the AB 109 Public Safety Realignment program, including
recommendations from the Community Corrections Partnership. (Lara DeLaney, Interim Senior
Deputy County Administrator) (Page 3)

4. CONSIDER receiving a report on proposed Gun Buy Back programs in Contra Costa County. (Mark
Peterson, District Attorney) (Page 11)

5. Adjourn

The Public Protection Committee will provide reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities planning to attend Public Protection Committee
meetings. Contact the staff person listed below at least 72 hours before the meeting.
 Any disclosable public records related to an open session item on a regular meeting agenda and distributed by the County to a majority of members of
the Public Protection Committee less than 96 hours prior to that meeting are available for public inspection at 651 Pine Street, 10th floor, during
normal business hours.


Public comment may be submitted via electronic mail on agenda items at least one full work day prior to the published meeting time.

For Additional Information Contact:

Timothy Ewell, Committee Staff
Phone (925) 335-1036, Fax (925) 646-1353
timothy.ewell@cao.cccounty.us

Acronyms, Abbreviations, and other Terms (in alphabetical order):
Contra Costa County has a policy of making limited use of acronyms, abbreviations, and industry-specific language
in its Board of Supervisors meetings and written materials. Following is a list of commonly used language that may
appear in oral presentations and written materials associated with Board meetings:
AB
ABAG
ACA
ADA
AFSCME
AICP
AIDS
ALUC
AOD
BAAQMD
BART
BCDC
BGO
BOS
CALTRANS
CalWIN
CalWORKS
CAER
CAO
CCHP
CCTA
CDBG
CEQA
CIO
COLA
ConFire
CPA
CPI
CSA
CSAC
CTC
dba
EBMUD
EIR
EIS
EMCC
EMS
EPSDT
et al.
FAA
FEMA
F&HS
First 5
FTE
FY
GHAD
GIS

Assembly Bill
Association of Bay Area Governments
Assembly Constitutional Amendment
Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
American Federation of State County and Municipal
Employees
American Institute of Certified Planners
Acquired Immunodeficiency Syndrome
Airport Land Use Commission
Alcohol and Other Drugs
Bay Area Air Quality Management District
Bay Area Rapid Transit District
Bay Conservation & Development Commission
Better Government Ordinance
Board of Supervisors
California Department of Transportation
California Works Information Network
California Work Opportunity and Responsibility
to Kids
Community Awareness Emergency Response
County Administrative Officer or Office
Contra Costa Health Plan
Contra Costa Transportation Authority
Community Development Block Grant
California Environmental Quality Act
Chief Information Officer
Cost of living adjustment
Contra Costa Consolidated Fire District
Certified Public Accountant
Consumer Price Index
County Service Area
California State Association of Counties
California Transportation Commission
doing business as
East Bay Municipal Utility District
Environmental Impact Report
Environmental Impact Statement
Emergency Medical Care Committee
Emergency Medical Services
State Early Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and
treatment Program (Mental Health)
et ali (and others)
Federal Aviation Administration
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Family and Human Services Committee
First Five Children and Families Commission
(Proposition 10)
Full Time Equivalent
Fiscal Year
Geologic Hazard Abatement District
Geographic Information System

HCD
HHS
HIPAA
HIV
HOV
HR
HUD

(State Dept of) Housing & Community Development
Department of Health and Human Services
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act
Human Immunodeficiency Syndrome
High Occupancy Vehicle
Human Resources
United States Department of Housing and Urban
Development
Inc.
Incorporated
IOC
Internal Operations Committee
ISO
Industrial Safety Ordinance
JPA
Joint (exercise of) Powers Authority or Agreement
Lamorinda
Lafayette-Moraga-Orinda Area
LAFCo
Local Agency Formation Commission
LLC
Limited Liability Company
LLP
Limited Liability Partnership
Local 1
Public Employees Union Local 1
LVN
Licensed Vocational Nurse
MAC
Municipal Advisory Council
MBE
Minority Business Enterprise
M.D.
Medical Doctor
M.F.T.
Marriage and Family Therapist
MIS
Management Information System
MOE
Maintenance of Effort
MOU
Memorandum of Understanding
MTC
Metropolitan Transportation Commission
NACo
National Association of Counties
OB-GYN
Obstetrics and Gynecology
O.D.
Doctor of Optometry
OES-EOC
Office of Emergency Services-Emergency
Operations Center
OSHA
Occupational Safety and Health Administration
Psy.D.
Doctor of Psychology
RDA
Redevelopment Agency
RFI
Request For Information
RFP
Request For Proposal
RFQ
Request For Qualifications
RN
Registered Nurse
SB
Senate Bill
SBE
Small Business Enterprise
SWAT
Southwest Area Transportation Committee
TRANSPAC Transportation Partnership & Cooperation (Central)
TRANSPLAN Transportation Planning Committee (East County)
TRE or TTE Trustee
TWIC
Transportation, Water and Infrastructure Committee
VA
Department of Veterans Affairs
vs.
versus (against)
WAN
Wide Area Network
WBE
Women Business Enterprise
WCCTAC
West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory
Committee
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County of Contra Costa
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR
MEMORANDUM

DATE:

June 6, 2013

TO:

PUBLIC PROTECTION COMMITTEE

FROM:

LARA DeLANEY, Interim Senior Deputy County Administrator

SUBJECT:

Agenda Item No. 3: AB 109 Data Collection and Program Evaluation Draft
RFQ: Scope of Work, Proposed Timeline, and Review Panel Composition
______________________________________________________________________________
RECOMMENDATION:
CONSIDER the draft Request for Qualifications (RFQ) for data collection and program
evaluation services related to the AB 109 Public Safety Realignment program, including
recommendations from the Community Corrections Partnership.
CONSIDER providing direction on:




Draft RFQ Scope of Services
Proposed Timeline for Solicitation Process
Composition of Review Panel

DISCUSSION:
As directed by the Board of Supervisors at its February 26, 2013 meeting, the County
Administrator’s Office was tasked with developing and issuing a solicitation for the procurement
of evaluation services for the County’s AB 109 Public Safety Realignment program. $246,000
in AB 109 Public Safety Realignment funding has been allocated in the FY 2012-13 and FY
2013-14 budgets for this purpose.
It is important to note that a consistent AB 109 evaluation approach has yet to emerge in
California. While counties are actively collecting data related to Public Safety Realignment
populations, most have not established a formal evaluation approach and do not yet have a
budget reserved for evaluation of their AB 109 programs.
Note: With regard to the format for solicitation of data collection and evaluation services, the
CAO’s office, in consultation with the County’s Purchasing Manager David Gould, recommends
the development of an RFQ (Request for Qualifications), as opposed to an RFP (Request for
Proposals). Generally, with an RFQ, selection is made based on the qualifications of the firm or
individual. The RFQ does not have a financial component and may be used to create a list for
future consideration. With an RFP, selection is based on responses and the proposer’s ability to
complete the Scope of Work. The RFP requests a cost proposal as a component of the response,
and it may be used for a specific project.
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Data and Evaluation Committee
Early in 2013, a work group of Community Advisory Board (CAB) and Community Corrections
Partnership (CCP) members was established as the “Data and Evaluation Committee” to promote
the implementation and long-term sustainability of data collection and analysis, help the County
track outcomes, and determine the effectiveness of policies, programs, and practices that affect
offender behavior, reducing recidivism and enhancing public safety.
The Data and Evaluation Committee recommends that the first step to any evaluation would be
to collect and establish baseline data: determine what data and information was collected prior
to realignment (2010) and what data and information is being collected now. Based upon the
available data, an evaluator could do a comparative analysis: what has changed from 2010 to
now, what are the failure rates on PRCS/probation, how many people are being released from
jails, how many individuals are on PRCS, what is the population being served, etc. This type of
data could help evaluate AB 109’s effect on recidivism rates in Contra Costa County.
Another significant element of program evaluation is the development of data collection
requirements and the establishment of performance measures. An evaluator would review
current practices and programs to determine if they are in compliance with the Operations Plan
and with best practices.
All evaluations begin with a research design – the plan for how the evaluation will be carried out,
what will be measured, and how those data elements will be captured. The recommendation from
the Committee is for a consultant to utilize a mixed-methods approach that incorporates
quantitative data on a variety of process and outcomes measures and qualitative data from
interviews with relevant stakeholders and with those charged with implementing AB 109.
In summary, the Data and Evaluation Committee has established the following goals and
priorities to guide the development of an RFQ to procure the expertise of a research consultant.
Phase I




Data collection and analysis
 Establishment of baseline data to measure impact of AB 109 implementation
 Accountability for outcomes
 Identify a universal set of data definitions, outcomes and measurements
 Track program participation (may move to Phase II)
 Establish benchmarks and milestones to aid in decision making and future
planning
 Survey of data sets currently available and input into data collection needed
 Define who AB 109 includes and how to track participation
Develop a countywide definition of recidivism and mechanisms for tracking over time

Phase II


Develop data sharing across agencies and with community partners
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Study the countywide impacts, upstream and downstream impacts, on other County
departments and changes in County/community needs
Evaluate and analyze the fidelity, effectiveness and outcomes of service provision
Development of a data dashboard for on-going monitoring

Considerations for the development of the RFQ are included in Attachment A.
A preliminary draft RFQ scope of services is Attachment B. A draft that incorporates the
considerations in Attachment A and input from the PPC and the CCP (obtained at their June
meetings) will be distributed to the Data and Evaluation Committee in July for further refinement
and provided to the PPC members for their review and comment as well.
Proposed Timeline
CAO staff presented a preliminary timeline for the RFQ solicitation process to the Data and
Evaluation Committee at its June 3, 2013 meeting. While Committee members recognize the
importance and urgency of retaining professional program evaluation services, the preliminary
timeline was determined to be too aggressive, as it did not provide sufficient time for RFQ
development and proposal response time. Thus, CAO staff revised the proposed timeline and
offers the following for CCP and PPC consideration:
AB 109 RFQ Timeline
Event
Draft RFQ Scope of Services & Timeline to CCP
Draft RFQ Scope & Timeline to PPC
Final RFQ to CCP
Final RFQ to PPC
RFQ Issued
Written Questions Due from bidders
Addendum Issued
Responses Due
Evaluation Period
Results Letter Issued
Appeal Period
CCP Reviews Results
Public Protection Reviews Results
Board Award Date
Contract Start Date

5 month process
June 7, 2013
June 10, 2013
Aug. 2, 2013
Aug. 12, 2013
Aug. 14, 2013
Aug. 28
Aug. 30
Sept. 20, 2013
Sept. 23-27, 2013
Sept. 27, 2013
Sept. 27- Oct. 3, 2013
October 4, 2013
October 14, 2013
October 22, 2013
November 1, 2013

Preliminary scope of services and proposed timeline
Preliminary scope of services and proposed timeline
CCP and PPC likely not meeting July 5.
Two days after approval by PPC

37 days (5.5 weeks)
One working week

Review Panel Composition
A Review Panel will need to be established to evaluate all proposals received. CAO staff
recommends that the panel be composed of the Chief Probation Officer, CAO staff, the County
Reentry Coordinator, a criminal justice research professional (unaffiliated with any responders),
a formerly incarcerated person, a member of the Data and Evaluation Committee, and staff of a
Department engaged in data collection and program evaluation activities related to AB 109.
On the basis of panel ratings recommendations, it is expected that the Public Protection
Committee will make recommendations to the Contra Costa County Board of Supervisors on
contract award.
Page 5 of 13
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Opportunities for Collaboration
Staff of the CAO, Probation, and EHSD have been engaged with staff from the Pew Center on
the States regarding the opportunity of engaging with their “Results First” team to implement
their unique “cost-benefit analysis tools to help identify options that provide the best outcomes
for citizens while improving [government’s] fiscal health.” Pew is bringing Washington State’s
cost-benefit model to other states and to counties in California and providing technical assistance
to help them use the model to compile and analyze data, interpret results, and present findings to
policy makers.
After preliminary discussions, Pew is amenable to exploring the possibility of working with us,
potentially in collaboration with the local university system, and would like to explore this
opportunity, in consultation with the CCP.
The Results First model analyzes all available research to systematically identify which
programs work and which don’t; it calculates the potential return on investment of policy
decisions; it ranks the projected benefits, costs, and risks of all programs; it assesses the
combined benefits and costs of a package or “portfolio” of policies instead of judging each
program separately; and it works with policy makers to make these analyses useful for policy
and budget decisions.
CAO staff has also been discussing the opportunity of collaborating with Alameda County on
their program evaluation efforts being conducted in consortium with Stanford University. The
Alameda County Administrator is interested in such a collaboration, and staff will explore the
possibilities with Alameda County staff in advance of the next Data and Evaluation Committee
meeting.
Finally, California Forward’s Partnership for Community Excellence is proposing to convene
counties in small groups to discuss local and/or regional challenges and opportunities associated
with AB 109 implementation. The meetings will be customized to local needs, and the
Partnership has resources to provide targeted, technical assistance in follow up. The Partnership
will cover the costs associated with these gatherings. Staff has contacted CA Forward to suggest
that a regional convening be facilitated around program evaluation efforts; it is currently under
consideration.
Attachments
Attachment A – Considerations for development of RFQ
Attachment B – Draft Scope of Services
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AB 109 Data and Program Evaluation RFQ Considerations
Data Systems and Evaluation Infrastructure
What is the current capacity of County agencies and community based service providers to track
information and provide data to the evaluation?





What data fields are currently collected?
What is the format of each data field?
o Field name
o Field definition
o Field type (text or numeric)
o Field length
o Field order
What software is used for data storage and reporting (Access? Excel? A unique, proprietary
system?
o What is the system’s capacity to export comma-delimited text files?

Formative (Process) Evaluation
Is AB 109 being implemented as intended and with fidelity?












Are the eligibility criteria being applied as intended?
Are all offenders who are eligible for Post-Release Community Supervision (PRCS) being offered
early release?
Are offenders who are not eligible (based on statutory requirements) getting it?
What are the sentencing patterns for the PC 1170(h) population?
What proportion of the AB 109 population (PRCS and 1170[h] with mandatory supervision) fail
to appear at Probation? What are the consequences of failing to appear?
Is risk assessment being done on all AB 109 offenders and are case plans for supervision being
created? How long does this process take?
What steps are taken when AB 109 offenders commit technical violations? New offenses?
How extensive is the use of Alternative Custody programs?
What referrals are made for treatment services?
Are AB 109 offenders receiving needed treatment services?
What are the program completion rates? The rates of successful completion?

Summative (Outcome) Evaluation
What are the effects of AB 109 in Contra Costa County?





What proportion of offenders commit violations (new crimes v. technical violations) while on
supervision (recidivism outcomes)?
o Arrests, convictions and sentences for new offenses
o Revocations for technical violations
What use is made of graduated sanctions to address non-compliance with supervision?
Is recidivism related to assessed risk level or to other characteristics of offenders?
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What is the impact on local departments (Sheriff, Probation, Judiciary, Prosecutor, Public
Defender, Health Services, Education and Human Services, etc.)?
What is the impact on crime rates?
Quality of life outcomes for AB 109 clients
o Maintaining sobriety
o Appropriate housing
o Working/Job Training/Education
o Receiving entitled benefits

Required Data






Information about current data and case management systems
Information on AB 109 sub-populations (i.e., PRCS, N3s, parole violators)
Interviews with CCP partners on the effectiveness of the Realignment Plan
o Strengths of the local realignment
o Challenges to the local realignment
o Recommendations to enhance local realignment
Longitudinal data on crimes reported to the police (UCR data)
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Purpose and Scope of Services
A. Purpose:
“Reentry” is not a specific program, but rather a research-driven process that starts when an
offender is initially incarcerated and ends when the offender has been successfully
reintegrated in his or her community as a law-abiding citizen. The reentry process includes
the delivery of a variety of research- and evidence-based program services in both pre- and
post-release settings, designed to ensure that the transition from prison or jail to the
community is safe and successful.
AB 109 Public Safety Realignment legislation defines a new population, establishes new
roles and responsibilities for managing and supervising that population, and defines a
specific intent (reducing recidivism) related to this population. These three conditions require
multiple changes in the ways that county agencies and community-based organizations
collaborate, operate, and assess their individual and collective success.
As a result of these conditions, and reflecting Contra Costa County’s commitment to
identifying effective practices, the Contra Costa Board of Supervisors has directed the
County Administrator’s office to issue this Request for Qualifications to identify outstanding
candidates to develop a comprehensive data collection and program evaluation plan to
support formative (process) and summative (outcome) evaluations.
Consistent with the Contra Costa County Reentry Strategic Plan [adopted April 2011] and
the Contra Costa County AB 109 Operations Plan [adopted January 2013], the evaluation
plan should enhance long-term liberty, increase public safety, reduce recidivism, and foster
effective and efficient systems integration.
These data and evaluation design and implementation services must be independent and
objective. In the performance of these services, the successful contractor shall avoid all
conflicts of interest and all appearances of conflicts of interest. All conflicts of interest and
potential conflicts of interest shall be described in detail in the proposal with all potential
resolutions which may allow the services to be completed.
The proposers of the data and evaluation design and implementation services for the AB 109
Public Safety Realignment Program must be familiar with the expectations of the reentry
service providers’ provision of services as well as demonstrate the ability to evaluate and
analyze the fidelity, effectiveness and outcomes of such services. Please refer to XXXX for
more information about these services.
The successful contractor is expected to develop data and evaluation systems and policies to
support AB 109 Public Safety Realignment service implementation by the County and
community based organizations. Because the first years of AB 109 involve multiple new
approaches and strategies that will emerge and shift over time, the successful contractor is
also expected to utilize current findings to provide recommendations of additional strategies
and expected outcomes that may positively impact the County’s AB 109 Public Safety
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Realignment system, including a description of what the service outcomes may suggest about
the County’s AB 109 Public Safety Realignment system.
The County and community based organizations are expected to ensure adequate data
collection, management and reporting of indicators as required in their contracts (CBOs
only). The successful contractor must collaborate with service providers to identify relevant
and necessary data elements, develop protocols for data collection, sharing, and use, and
design formative, process, and outcome evaluation plans to assess AB 109 Public Safety
Realignment implementation.
B. Data Collection and Evaluation Design and Implementation Services:
Proposals to develop a comprehensive data collection and evaluation strategy are likely to
include at least six areas of work:
1. Analysis of existing data practices and data sets currently used by public agencies and
non-profit organizations involved with this population;
2. Assessments of and recommendations related to data-related infrastructures at public
agencies and non-profit organizations involved with this population;
3. Development of county-wide, shared definitions for critical elements of AB 109 (a
common definition of recidivism, for example);
4. Development of county-wide, shared baseline data sets and common process and
outcome metrics;
5. Development of common policies to support efficient and effective data-gathering, datasharing, and data-use among agencies and organizations serving this population;
6. Analysis and recommendations related to the development of a user-friendly, accessprotected, web-based AB 109 metric dashboard accessible to and readily customizable
by various stakeholders.
Qualified applicants are expected to demonstrate capacity and experience in multiple realms
related to this RFQ, such as:
1. Developing formative, process, and summative evaluations for integrated, multistakeholder systems of care;
2. Assessing and making recommendations related to options for data infrastructures and
web-based CMS platforms;
3. Providing subject-matter research and advice related to AB 109 implementation and
evaluation strategies in other counties in California
4. Developing draft agreements, policies, and procedures to guide data-related activities
and data use for multiple stakeholders (public and private)
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